MINISTRY OF EDUCATION AND SCIENCE OF UKRAINE STATE HIGHER EDUCATIONAL INSTITUTION «UZHHOROD NATIONAL UNIVERSITY» FACULTY OF INTERNATIONAL ECONOMIC RELATIONS DEPARTMENT OF INTERNATIONAL ECONOMIC RELATIONS

Myroslava Tsalan Olena Zajats

Methodical instructions for studying the discipline

«WORLD ECONOMY»

Level of higher education the 1st

Field of knowledge 29 International relation

Specialty 292 «International economic

relations»

Educational program «International economic

relations»

Discipline statuscompulsoryLanguage of studyEnglish

UZHHOROD – 2020

MINISTRY OF EDUCATION AND SCIENCE OF UKRAINE STATE HIGHER EDUCATIONAL INSTITUTION «UZHHOROD NATIONAL UNIVERSITY» FACULTY OF INTERNATIONAL ECONOMIC RELATIONS DEPARTMENT OF INTERNATIONAL ECONOMIC RELATIONS

Myroslava Tsalan Olena Zajats

Methodical instructions for studying the discipline

«WORLD ECONOMY»

Level of higher education the 1st

Field of knowledge 29 International relation

Specialty 292 «International economic

relations»

Educational program «International economic

relations»

Discipline status compulsory **Language of study** English

UZHHOROD – **2020**

Methodical instructions for the studying of the discipline "World economy" for applicants for higher education in the field of knowledge 29 International relations, 292 International economic relations of the educational program «International economic relations» / Compilers: Tsalan M.I., Zajats O.I. - : PE Zejkan, 2020. - 31 p.

Compilers:

Tsalan M.I., PhD in Economics, Associate Professor of the Department of International Economic Relations

Zajats O.I., PhD in Economics, Associate Professor of the Department of International Economic Relations

Reviewers:

Palinchak M.M., Doctor of Political Sciences, Professor, Professor of the Department of International Politics, Dean of the Faculty of International Economic Relations Brenzovych K.S., PhD in Economics, Associate Professor, Associate Professor of the Department of International Economic Relations

Methodical instructions have been	en considered and approved at the meeting of the
Department of International Econo	omic Relations
protocol № 5 from 15 December 2	
•	Doctor of Economics, Prof. Prykhodko V.P.
Approved by the Scientific and International Economic Relations protocol № 3 from 14 January 202	d Methodological Commission of the Faculty of
1	Methodical commission PhD in
Economics, Associate Professor E	
1	the Academic Council of the Faculty of International
	Higher Educational Institution «Uzhhorod National
University»	
protocol № 8 from 23 June 2020.	

© Tsalan M.I., 2020

© Zajats O.I., 2020

© State Higher Educational Institution «Uzhhorod National University», 2020

CONTENTS

Introduction	.4
1. The description of the discipline	5
2. The purpose of the discipline	5
3. Prerequisites for studying the discipline	6
4. Expected learning outcomes	.6
5. Diagnostic tools and criteria for evaluating learning outcomes	.8
6. Curriculum of the discipline	12
6.1. The content of the discipline	12
6.2. The structure of the discipline	13
6.3. Topics of practical (seminar) classes	14
6.4.Independent work of the student	15
6.5.Individual tasks	15
7. The list of questions which are taken out on modular tests	7
8. Samples of test tasks for modular control	18
9. The list of questions for the exam	22
10. Topics of year papers of the discipline	23
11. Tools, equipment and software, the use of which provides for the discipline "Wor	:ld
Economy"	26
12. Recommended references	26

INTRODUCTION

In modern conditions of globalization, internationalization, transnationalization processes intensification, the integration of Ukraine into the world economic environment, the participants of the educational process are tasked with mastering professional knowledge, acquiring high erudition and developing skills of free orientation in modern international economic relations.

The course "World Economy" is a normative discipline. Mastering the main topics of the course should help students with a bachelor's degree, future professionals in international economic relations to gain a thorough knowledge and understanding of key aspects of the world economy as a whole system, resource potential of the world economy, basic characteristics of the 21st century, economic model, globalization and transnationalization processes, developed countries economies development, developing and transition economic systems. Particular attention in the study of the discipline is paid to issues of international integration processes, economic development of individual regions of the world, as well as Ukraine as a subject of the world economy.

As a result of studying the course "World Economy", students pass the exam.

1. THE DESCRIPTION OF THE DISCIPLINE

Name of indicators	Distribution of hours according to the curriculum for for foreigners and stateless persons (full-time education)
Number of ECTS credits – 4	Year of study:
Total number of hours – 120	2
Number of modules – 2	Semester:
Weekly hours	4
for full-time study: 4	Lectures:
•	28
classroom – 44	Practical (seminar) classes:
independent work of the student - 46	16
Type of final control: exam	Laboratory:
	-
Form of final control:	Independent work:
Oral exam, tests in the Moodle system	46

2. THE PURPOSE OF THE DISCIPLINE

The purpose of studying the discipline "World Economy" is to form students' knowledge of the main aspects of the world economy both in the historical context and at the present stage.

According to the educational program, the study of the discipline "World Economy" contributes to the formation of following students' competencies:

- knowledge and understanding of the subject area and professional activity;
- the ability to identify the characteristics and trends of the world economy development, features of the implementation of economic policy and global integration / disintegration processes, including the European integration;

- the ability to analyze the models of national economies development, their strengths and weaknesses that determine their role in the modern world economic system;
- the ability to analyze world trade trends, to identify tools and principles of its regulation, in particular the foreign trade regulation in the EU;
- the presence of a systematic view of the structure and trends of the world economy; knowledge of the principles of making and implementing economic decisions at the micro- and macro levels; the ability to use economic information in professional, industrial activities and everyday life;
- the ability to analyze and forecast trends in global markets taking into account market changes;
- the ability to apply methods, rules and principles of international economic relations functioning for the development of foreign economic activity of Ukraine.

3. PREREQUISITES FOR STUDYING THE DISCIPLINE

Prerequisites for studying the discipline "World Economy" are the mastery of the following disciplines of the educational program:

OC 10 – Economic history;

OC 12 – Local lore;

OC 13 – International organizations;

OC 16 – Foreign language for professional purposes;

OC 9 – Political economy;

OC 17 – Macro-, microeconomics;

SC 5 – Theory of money and money circulation / Prices and pricing.

4. EXPECTED LEARNING OUTCOMES

According to the educational program "International Economic Relations", the studying of the discipline should ensure the achievement of higher education students the following program learning outcomes (PLO):

Program learning outcomes	PLO Code
To investigate and analyze the models of national economies	PLO 7
development and to justify measures to achieve their strategic goals in the	
world economic relations transformation period	
To analyze the activities of global firms (transnational corporations,	PLO 8
strategic alliances, consortia, syndicates, trusts, etc.) in order to determine their competitive positions and advantages in world markets.	
To demonstrate an understanding of the patterns and trends of the world	PLO 9
economy and the phenomenon of the new economy, taking into account	
the processes of intellectualization, informatization and scientific and	
technological exchange.	
To understand the essence of international economic relations and the	PLO 10
relationship of their forms, subjects and levels; to analyze and evaluate	
the economic, political, legal, socio-cultural environment and	
infrastructure of the international economic relations.	
To be able to use the acquired knowledge on the conditions of foreign	PLO 11
economic activity of Ukraine, on the one hand, based on the goals and	
objectives of its integration into the modern system of world economic	
relations, and on the other - taking into account trends and prospects of	
international economic relations.	
To identify economic strategies of countries and priorities taking into	PLO 12
account national economic interests in the context of global problems of	
mankind and the asymmetry of the world resources distribution.	
To apply in practice knowledge of the principles and laws of inernational	PLO 17
economic relations development, the processes of international division	
of labor, specialization and cooperation; forms, methods and mechanisms	
for regulation of international trade, labor migration and capital	
movements.	DY 0.10
To understand and to apply theories, principles, tools and instruments for	PLO 18
the international monetary, financial and credit relations implementation.	DI 0 21
To be able to use the acquired knowledge on the features and conditions	PLO 21
of international investment cooperation, to analyze the national	
investment policies and to implement the leading international experience	
to improve the investment environment in Ukraine.	

Expected learning outcomes to be achieved by students after mastering the discipline "World Economy" are the following:

Expected learning outcomes of the discipline	PLO Code
To analyze the goals of national economies strategic development in the	PLO 7
conditions of transformation processes in the world economy	
To evaluate the results of transnational corporations and alliances	PLO 8
performance to determine the level of their competitiveness in the global	
market	
To understand the current trends in the world economy and the	PLO 9
peculiarities of the new economy phenomenon (including the importance	
of the processes of intellectualization, informatization and scientific and	
technological exchange) in modern conditions	
To know the conditions of foreign economic activity of Ukraine and the	PLO 11
prospects of its full integration into the modern world economic system	
in terms of building a strategy of economic development	
To analyze the economic strategies of countries in the context of	PLO 12
exacerbation of global problems and the resources distribution	
asymmetry	_
To synthesize knowledge of the processes of development of the	PLO 17
international division of labor, specialization and countries cooperation,	
mechanisms for regulation of the international trade, labor migration and	
capital movements in the transformational processes of the world	
economy	
To analyze the features and conditions of investment activities of	PLO 21
developed and developing countries and to apply their experience in	
terms of improving the investment environment in Ukraine	

5. DIAGNOSTIC TOOLS AND CRITERIA FOR EVALUATUNG LEARNING OUTCOMES

Assessment tools and methods for demonstrating learning outcomes.

Means of assessment and methods of demonstrating learning outcomes in the discipline "World Economy" are:

- reports for presentation at practical classes;
- presentations on the topics of lectures and practical classes;
- collective preparation of scientific reports;
- essay and abstract;
- testing;
- exam.

Forms of control and criteria for evaluating learning outcomes.

Forms of current control:

- preparation of reports for speeches at practical classes;
- preparation of presentations for visual presentation of the processed material;
- discussion of issues on the topic of practical classes;
- preparation of related issues to the topic of lectures and practical classes for wider mastering of the topic;
- elaboration of the proposed topics for writing abstracts and essays.

Form of modular control: written testing.

Form of final semester control: oral exam, in the conditions of distance learning - testing in the Moodle system.

Distribution of points received by applicants for higher education (module 1)

Current assessment and independent work			Modular	Total			
						test	
T1	T2	T3	T4	T5	T6	50	100
8	8	8	8	8	10		

T1, T2 – lecture topics

Distribution of points received by applicants for higher education (module 2)

Current assessment and independent work							Modular	Total
							test	
T7	T8	T9	T10	T11	T12	T13	50	100
7	7 7 7 7 8							

T1, T2 – lecture topics

Evaluation of certain types of educational work in the discipline

Type of activity of the	\mathbf{N}	Iodule 1	N	Module 2
applicant for higher education	Number	Maximum number of points (total)	Number	Maximum number of points (total)
Practical (seminar) classes,	4	50	4	50
including:				
Report	4	32	4	32
Presentation	4	8	4	8
Abstract	1	5	1	5
Essay	1	5	1	5
Modular control work	1	50	1	50
Total		100		100

Criteria for evaluating modular test

During the semester, students perform two modular tests, each of which is estimated at 50 points.

Modular tasks are offered in the form of 25 tests, which are evaluated at 2 points each.

Criteria for evaluating the year paper (project).

In the discipline "World Economy" students must complete a year paper in the 4th semester of the educational program "International Economic Relations". The year paper should correspond to the current state of economics and trends in its development. It is characterized by the nature of theoretical and applied research on the chosen topic of the student and prepares him for future activities in a particular field, it is one of the steps to write a master's thesis.

The purpose of a year paper writing is mastering by the students of the research methods.

The quality of performance and success of defense of the year paper is determined by such a system:

The grade "excellent" is given for thoroughly performed work (according to standard requirements) when the student is fluent in the material on the chosen topic,

operates with scientific terminology, widely uses scientific sources and gives them a critical assessment, independently analyzes the material, uses modern theories and scientific research methods, skillfully combines theoretical knowledge with practice, and his work is performed in compliance with all necessary requirements.

The grade "Good" is exhibited in the case when the student has thoroughly done the work, honestly prepared for the defense, skillfully teaches and knows the material. However, the defense admits certain inaccuracies in the interpretation of certain issues, has difficulty in their theoretical generalization or practical direction, has not used a sufficient number of scientific sources.

The grade "Satisfactory" is exhibited if the student performed the work in accordance with the requirements, generally oriented in this topic, but can not formulate conclusions sufficiently, skillfully relate theoretical generalizations to practice, has significant difficulties in the logical presentation of research problems, not convincingly and confidently defends his work.

The grade "Unsatisfactory" is exhibited when the work has significant shortcomings, performed with deviation from the established requirements, and its author does not focus on the topic, does not have the necessary conceptual apparatus, has not mastered a minimum of scientific sources, does not have material on the chosen topic for research.

When setting a grade for writing a year paper, not only the quality of the research itself is taken into account, but also the design and ability to defend the formulated provisions and conclusions.

Criteria for evaluating the final semester control

Assessment of knowledge, skills and practical skills of a student in the discipline "World Economy" is carried out on a 100-point system.

Assessment of students' knowledge is based on the results of:

- current control of knowledge;
- final control of knowledge (exam).

The current control of students' knowledge is carried out by two components:

- control of regular attendance and activity of the student at lectures and seminars during the semester;
- control over the performance of modular tests.

When controlling the regularity and activity of the student's work these items are the subjects for evaluation:

- attending seminars;
- activity at seminars;
- the level of knowledge of the program material.

The maximum score of the regularity and activity of the student's work control is 50 points and separately 50 points the student can get for performing modular control tests, which together is 100 points for one module.

Final grade from the discipline

The final grade is the arithmetic mean for two modules, and is a maximum of 100 points.

In case of disagreement of the student with the received point during the current control of knowledge, having typed at least 35 points for the admission reception, the student has the right to pass a credit on discipline.

6. CURRICULUM OF THE DISCIPLINE

6.1. The content of the discipline

Module 1

- Topic 1. World economy: essence, structure, main stages of development.
- Topic 2. Resource potential of modern civilization.
- Topic 3. Formation of the economic model of the XXI century.
- Topic 4. Globalization of economic processes.
- Topic 5. Transnationalization of the world economy.
- Topic 6. Economy of developed countries.

Module 2

- Topic 7. Transformational economy.
- Topic 8. Economies of developing countries.

Topic 9. The economy of the United States and Canada.

Topic 10. The economy of Latin America.

Topic 11. Economy of Central and Eastern Europe.

Topic 12. International economic integration.

Topic 13. Ukraine as a subject of the world economy.

6.2. The structure of the discipline

Names of content modules and	d Number of hours					
topics	Form of study					
			i	ncluding		
	Total	lectures	practical (seminar)	laboratory	individual work	individual students' work
	Semeste					
	Modul		1			
Topic 1. World economy: essence, structure, main stages of development.	11	3	2	-	3	3
Topic 2. Resource potential of modern civilization.	9	2	1	-	2	4
Topic 3. Formation of the economic model of the XXI century.	9	2	1	-	2	4
Topic 4. Globalization of economic processes.	12	3	2	-	3	4
Topic 5. Transnationalization of the world economy.	10	2	1	-	3	4
Topic 6. Economy of developed countries.	9	2	1	-	2	4
Modular test	-	-	-	-	-	-
Total	60	14	8	-	15	23
Module 2						
Topic 7. Transformational economy.	8	2	1	-	2	3
Topic 8. Economies of developing countries.	8	2	1	-	2	3
Topic 9. The economy of the United States and Canada.	8	2	1	-	2	3

Topic 10. The economy of Latin	9	2	1	-	2	4
America.						
Topic 11. Economy of Central and	9	2	1	-	2	4
Eastern Europe.						
Topic 12. International economic	9	2	2	-	2	3
integration.						
Topic 13. Ukraine as a subject of the	9	2	1	-	3	3
world economy.						
Modular test	-	-	-	-	-	-
Total	60	14	8	•	15	23

6.3. Topics of practical (seminar) classes

№	Topic name	The number of hours
1	Topic 1. World economy: essence, structure, main stages of development.	2
2	Topic 2. Resource potential of modern civilization.	1
3	Topic 3. Formation of the economic model of the XXI century.	1
4	Topic 4. Globalization of economic processes.	2
5	Topic 5. Transnationalization of the world economy.	1
6	Topic 6. Economy of developed countries.	1
7	Topic 7. Transformational economy.	1
8	Topic 8. Economies of developing countries.	1
9	Topic 9. The economy of the United States and Canada.	1
10	Topic 10. The economy of Latin America.	1
11	Topic 11. Economy of Central and Eastern	1
	Europe.	
12	Topic 12. International economic integration.	2
13	Topic 13. Ukraine as a subject of the world	1
	economy.	
	Total	16

6.4. Independent work of the student

Nº	Topic name	The number of hours
1	Topic 1. World economy: essence, structure, main stages of development.	3
2	Topic 2. Resource potential of modern civilization.	4
3	Topic 3. Formation of the economic model of the XXI century.	4
4	Topic 4. Globalization of economic processes.	4
5	Topic 5. Transnationalization of the world economy.	4
6	Topic 6. Economy of developed countries.	4
7	Topic 7. Transformational economy.	3
8	Topic 8. Economies of developing countries.	3
9	Topic 9. The economy of the United States and Canada.	3
10	Topic 10. The economy of Latin America.	4
11	Topic 11. Economy of Central and Eastern Europe.	4
12	Topic 12. International economic integration.	3
13	Topic 13. Ukraine as a subject of the world economy.	3
	Total	46

6.5. Individual tasks

Topics for writing an essay on the subject "World Economy"

- 1. Competition and competitiveness the driving force of the world economy.
- 2. Evolutionary development of the world economy.
- 3. Problems of internationalization of the economy.
- 4. Globalization and its role in the development of the world economy.
- 5. The impact of globalization on education and people.
- 6. TNCs efficiency and competitiveness.
- 7. The economic role of the state in the context of globalization.
- 8. The importance of the Organization of economic cooperation and development (OECD) in the world economy.
- 9. The formation of an open economy: benefits and threats.
- 10. The world market of technologies as an important component of the world economy.
- 11. The current state of the world labor market development.

- 12. Information resources and their importance in the world economy.
- 13. The role of technological resources at the present stage of the world economy development.
- 14. The importance of transnationalization in the world economy.
- 15. Advantages of transnational alliances.
- 16. Cyclical development of the world economy.
- 17. The main directions of structural changes in the world economy.
- 18. The importance of the transition to the information society.
- 19. The impact of post-industrialization on the world economy.
- 20. Scientific resources of the world: problems and prospects.
- 21. Financial resources of the world economy and the mechanism of their redistribution.
- 22. The place of regional integration in the development of the world economy.
- 23. Promising areas of international economic integration.
- 24. Problems and prospects of Ukraine's integration into the world economy.
- 25. Formation of competition strategy in the world market.
- 26. Features of competition in the transformation period.
- 27. Ukraine's place in the international investment market.
- 28. Globalization and global problems of the world economy.
- 29. Measures to increase the efficiency of Ukraine's economy in transition.
- 30. Difficulties of Ukraine's integration into the EU.
- 31. Advantages and challenges of integration associations in the modern world economy.
- 32. The main directions of the world economy development in modern conditions.
- 33. Factors of development and the place of developing countries in the world economy.
- 34. The impact of the transition period on the country's economy.
- 35. Common and distinctive features of transition to a market economy models.
- 36. Experience of transformation processes of countries and the possibility of its application in Ukraine.
- 37. The place of developed countries in the world economy.
- 38. Comparison of the TNCs value for developed and developing countries.
- 39. The experience of US-Canada relations and its significance for Ukraine.
- 40. Latin America in the system of the world economic relations.
- 41. Prospects of NIC in the world economy.
- 42. The importance of the region of Central and Eastern Europe in the world economy.
- 43. Economic unity of the world and global problems of the world economy.
- 44. Advantages and disadvantages of EU accession for the Polish economy.
- 45. Advantages and disadvantages of EU accession for the Hungarian economy.
- 46. Advantages and disadvantages of EU accession for the Romanian economy.
- 47. Policy for the protection of internal markets of CEE countries.

- 48. Prospects for the transformation of NAFTA.
- 49. Prospects for the world economy.
- 50. The role of digitalization in the modern world economy.

7. THE LIST OF QUESTIONS WHICH ARE TAKEN OUT ON MODULAR TESTS

Questions for preparation for modular test №1

- 1. The concept of the world economy as a coherent system.
- 2. Stages of formation and development of the world economy.
- 3. Structure, main features and indicators of the world economy development.
- 4. Factors of production in the world economy.
- 5. The place and role of natural resources in the world economy.
- 6. Fuel and energy potential and its distribution in the world economy.
- 7. Ukraine's place in the structure of the world's resource potential.
- 8. Information resources.
- 9. Financial and credit resources.
- 10. Technological resources.
- 11. Labor resources of modern civilization.
- 12. The crisis of industrial civilization and its features.
- 13. Global economic transformation.
- 14. Information and technological model of economic development.
- 15. The essence of globalization and the global challenges of the world economy.
- 16. The main stages of economic globalization.
- 17. Causes of globalization in the world economy.
- 18. Factors of globalization of economic development.
- 19. Globalization and regionalization.
- 20. Pros and cons of globalization processes.
- 21. General characteristics of the transnationalization process.
- 22. Causes of TNCs emergence and development.
- 23. Features of TNC strategy formation.
- 24. Activities of transnational alliances.
- 25. The scale of modern activities of TNCs.
- 26. Activation of TNC activities.
- 27. General characteristics of the economy of developed countries.
- 28. Organization of economic cooperation and development.
- 29. Investment policy of economically developed countries.
- 30. Innovative component of economy of developed countries.

Questions for preparation for modular test No 2

- 1. The essence of the transition period.
- 2. Models of transition to a market economy.
- 3. Features of transformation of economy of Ukraine.
- 4. General characteristics of the economic systems of developing countries.
- 5. Grouping of developing countries.
- 6. The role of TNCs in the economic policies of developing countries.
- 7. Economic strategies of developing countries.
- 8. Development of the US economy.
- 9. The economic system of Canada.
- 10. Relations between the USA and Canada.
- 11. Integration processes in Latin American countries.
- 12. Features of economic development in Latin America.
- 13. Latin American participation in foreign economic activity.
- 14. Relations between Ukraine and Latin American countries.
- 15. Economic development of CEE countries (Central and Eastern Europe).
- 16. Features of the protection of the internal markets of the countries of Central and Eastern Europe.
- 17. Ukraine's cooperation with CEE countries.
- 18. The essence of integration processes in the world economy.
- 19. Stages of integration transformations and main types of integration associations.
- 20. European Free Trade Association: basic principles of action.
- 21. North American Free Trade Association.
- 22. The EU as a developed integration union: prerequisites and stages of formation.
- 23. Features of relations between Ukraine and the European Union.
- 24. Global problems of the world economy and ways to solve them.
- 25. International economic cooperation to solve global problems.
- 26. Foreign economic activity of Ukraine.
- 27. Reforming the Ukrainian economy.
- 28. Investment climate of Ukraine.
- 29. Perspective directions of the Ukrainian economy development.
- 30. The place and role of Ukraine in the world economy.

8. SAMPLES OF TEST TASKS FOR MODULAR CONTROL

- 1. The specialization of individual countries within the world economy in the production of certain products and services in accordance with their climatic, historical and economic conditions, which causes and implies the need to exchange the results of different activities on the world market is called...
- a) internationalization of economic life;

- b) globalization;
- c) international division of labor;
- d) international cooperation.
- 2. The form of business communication in which everything intended for sale is sold by the manufacturer inside the country is called...
- a) the internal market;
- b) the national market;
- c) the international market;
- d) the world market.
- 3. Products and services that are further processed or resold several times before they reach the consumer are called...
- a) final products;
- b) intermediate products;
- c) value added.
- 4. Scientific methods of achieving practical goals are called...
- a) labor;
- b) technology;
- c) land;
- d) capital.
- 5. The researched, explored and extracted natural resources that are used in the economy and are the means of existence of human society are called ... resources.
- a) fuel and energy resources;
- b) natural raw materials;
- c) economic.
- 6. Financial resources concentrated mainly at the disposal of enterprises, firms, companies, associations and organizations are called...
- a) centralized;
- b) decentralized.
- 7. The process of disseminating information technologies, products and systems around the world that carries economic and cultural integration is called...
- a) internationalization of economic life;
- b) globalization;
- c) regionalization.
- 8. According to the second approach, the emergence of globalization accounts for:
- a) the last quarter of the nineteenth century;
- b) 2nd floor of the XIX century;
- c) 1st half of the XX century;
- d) the last quarter of the twentieth century.
- 9. Corporations that are multinational in nature and in terms of their capital and business are called...
- a) transnational corporations;

- b) multinational corporations.
- 10. The Organization for Economic Cooperation and Development was established in:
- a)1963;
- b)1962;
- c)1961.
- 11. The division of labor into production sectors (mining and manufacturing, agriculture), manifested in the division of countries into raw materials, agrarian and industrial is called...
- a) general;
- b) partial;
- c) single.
- 12. The domestic market, part of which focuses on foreign buyers is called...
- a) the internal market;
- b) the national market;
- c) the international market;
- d) the world market.
- 13. The total cost of production of material products and services, regardless of the nationality of enterprises located in the territory of the country is called...
- a) gross world product;
- b) gross domestic product;
- c) gross national product.
- 14. Physical and mental activity of a person aimed at achieving a beneficial result is called...
- a) labor;
- b) technology;
- c) land;
- d) capital.
- 15. Focusing on individual factors of production in different countries, which leads to the production of certain goods, more cost effective than in other countries is called...
- a) international division of labor;
- b) international division of factors of production;
- c) internationalization of economic life.
- 16. What level of globalization is illustrated by the ratio of counter-intra-industry trade to world industry production, a relevant indicator in the investment sphere?
- a) firm level;
- b) country level;
- c) world level;
- d) industry level.
- 17. Characteristic of what level of globalization is the growing interdependence of countries and regions, the intertwining of their economic complexes and economic systems?

- a) firm level;
- b) country level;
- c) world level.
- 18. Entities doing business outside of one country are called ...
- a) transnational corporations;
- b) multinational corporations;
- c) both answers are correct.
- 19. The qualitatively new stage of internationalization of economic life, characterized by a sharp increase in the role of external factors of development of all states and the creation of transnational capital, is called...
- a) integration;
- b) transnationalization;
- c) internationalization.
- 20. SWOT analysis involves consideration of:
- a) srengths;
- b) weaknesses;
- c) opportunities;
- d) threats;
- e) all answers are correct.
- 21. Specialization in certain fields of production and types of products produced, which leads to a wider development of cross-industry exchange of finished products is called... division of labor.
- a) general;
- b) single;
- c) partial.
- 22. Products and services purchased by consumers for end use are called ...
- a) final products;
- b) intermediate products;
- c) value added.
- 23. The accumulated stock of funds in productive, monetary and commodity forms necessary for creation of material goods is called...
- a) labor;
- b) technology;
- c) land;
- d) capital.
- 24. At what level does globalization depend on how well the company has diversified its revenues and deployed assets across countries to increase exports of goods and services and to take advantage of local benefits related to greater access to natural resources and relatively cheap labor?
- a) firm level;
- b) country level;

- c) world level;
- d) industry level.
- 25. Since what period is the process of transnationalization of the world economy intensifying?
- a) 20-30's of the twentieth century;
- b) 30-40-ies of the twentieth century;
- c) 80-90 years of the twentieth century.

26.THE LIST OF QUESTIONS FOR THE EXAM

- 1. The concept of the world economy as a coherent system.
- 2. Stages of formation and development of the world economy.
- 3. Structure, main features and indicators of the world economy development.
- 4. Factors of production in the world economy.
- 5. The place and role of natural resources in the world economy.
- 6. Fuel and energy potential and its distribution in the world economy.
- 7. Ukraine's place in the structure of the world's resource potential.
- 8. Information resources.
- 9. Financial and credit resources.
- 10. Technological resources.
- 11. Labor resources of modern civilization.
- 12. The crisis of industrial civilization and its features.
- 13. Global economic transformation.
- 14. Information and technological model of economic development.
- 15. The essence of globalization and the global challenges of the world economy.
- 16. The main stages of economic globalization.
- 17. Causes of globalization in the world economy.
- 18. Factors of globalization of economic development.
- 19. Globalization and regionalization.
- 20. Pros and cons of globalization processes.
- 21. General characteristics of the transnationalization process.
- 22. Causes of TNCs emergence and development.
- 23. Features of TNC strategy formation.
- 24. Activities of transnational alliances.
- 25. The scale of modern activities of TNCs.
- 26. Activation of TNC activities.
- 27. General characteristics of the economy of developed countries.
- 28. Organization of economic cooperation and development.
- 29. Investment policy of economically developed countries.

- 30. Innovative component of economy of developed countries.
- 31. The essence of the transition period.
- 32. Models of transition to a market economy.
- 33. Features of transformation of economy of Ukraine.
- 34. General characteristics of the economic systems of developing countries.
- 35. Grouping of developing countries.
- 36. The role of TNCs in the economic policies of developing countries.
- 37. Economic strategies of developing countries.
- 38. Development of the US economy.
- 39. The economic system of Canada.
- 40. Relations between the USA and Canada.
- 41. Integration processes in Latin American countries.
- 42. Features of economic development in Latin America.
- 43. Latin American participation in foreign economic activity.
- 44. Relations between Ukraine and Latin American countries.
- 45. Economic development of CEE countries (Central and Eastern Europe).
- 46. Features of the protection of the internal markets of the countries of Central and Eastern Europe.
- 47. Ukraine's cooperation with CEE countries.
- 48. The essence of integration processes in the world economy.
- 49. Stages of integration transformations and main types of integration associations.
- 50. European Free Trade Association: basic principles of action.
- 51. North American Free Trade Association.
- 52. The EU as a developed integration union: prerequisites and stages of formation.
- 53. Features of relations between Ukraine and the European Union.
- 54. Global problems of the world economy and ways to solve them.
- 55. International economic cooperation to solve global problems.
- 56. Foreign economic activity of Ukraine.
- 57. Reforming the Ukrainian economy.
- 58. Investment climate of Ukraine.
- 59. Perspective directions of development of the Ukrainian economy.
- 60. The place and role of Ukraine in the world economy.

10. TOPICS OF YEAR PAPERS OF THE DISCIPLINE

- 1. Key factors and current trends in the world economy.
- 2. Modern structure and main features of the world economy.
- 3. Current problems of the world economy and ways to solve them.
- 4. Stages and trends in the world economy.
- 5. Ecological and economic development of the world economy.

- 6. Exacerbation of the demographic problem in the world economy.
- 7. Factors of development and reasons for the participation of countries in the international division of labor.
- 8. New trends in the development of the international division of labor and the world economy.
- 9. International specialization and cooperation of production: essence and forms.
- 10. The place and role of natural resources in the world economy.
- 11. Fuel and energy potential and its distribution in the world economy.
- 12. Information resources and their role in the development of the world economy.
- 13. Labor resources at the present stage of the world economy development.
- 14. Financial and credit resources and their importance in the development of the world economy.
- 15. The role of technological resources in the economic development of the country.
- 16. The main factors of production and the degree of their international mobility.
- 17. Energy potential of the Arab monarchies of the Middle East and the Persian Gulf.
- 18. Information technological model and its role in the development of the world economy.
- 19. Globalization and global problems of the world economy.
- 20. Regionalization as a characteristic feature of the world economy.
- 21. The role of globalization and regionalization in the development of the world economy.
- 22. The main directions of international economic cooperation in solving global problems.
- 23. Economic policy of the countries with developed market economies.
- 24. Investment and innovation policy of economically developed countries.
- 25. Economic policy and the place of developing countries in the world economy.
- 26. The role of TNCs in the economic policy of developing countries.
- 27. TNCs activities in economically developed countries.
- 28. The role of transition period in the national economy.
- 29. Economic policy and the place of newly industrialized countries in the world economy.
- 30. The place of Latin America in the world economy.
- 31. Foreign economic relations of Latin America with Ukraine.
- 32. The essence and directions of the developed countries economic assistance to developing countries.
- 33. Features of relations between the United States and Canada.
- 34. The current state of economic development of Canada.
- 35. Trends in US economic development and economic policy.
- 36. The current state of economic development of France.
- 37. Features of Great Britain economic development and its place in the world economy.

- 38. Features of Germany economic development and its importance in world economic processes.
- 39. The current state and trends of economic development of Japan.
- 40. Features of the Polish economy after joining the EU.
- 41. Features of the Hungarian economy in modern conditions.
- 42. Features of modern economic development of Romania.
- 43. Features of the Slovak economy.
- 44. Features of China's economic development and its role in the world economy.
- 45. Features of the process of transnationalization in the modern development of the world economy.
- 46. The impact of transnationalization on the economies of developed countries.
- 47. The importance of transnationalization in the economies of developing countries.
- 48. Motives, scope and main activities of multinational companies.
- 49. Innovative development as a basis for TNCs competitive advantages.
- 50. Ukraine's place in European integration processes.
- 51. Prerequisites, advantages and current state of Ukraine's integration into the EU.
- 52. The place of the EU in the world economic system.
- 53. Problems and prospects of European integration.
- 54. NAFTA and the development of economic integration in North America.
- 55. Economic consequences of Britain's exit from the EU.
- 56. EU economic policy: development trends, experience for Ukraine.
- 57. The role and the place of investment in the functioning of the world economy.
- 58. Features of attracting foreign investment into the economy.
- 59. Integration processes in Central and Eastern Europe.
- 60. Problems and prospects for the development of integration processes in the world economy.
- 61. International labor migration, its causes and economic consequences.
- 62. The formation of the world market, its structure and factors of development.
- 63. World technology market: current status and features of development.
- 64. The structure and trends of the global information services market.
- 65. The world market of services: formation and features of development.
- 66. Features of the modern world labor market.
- 67. Current trends in the Ukrainian economy.
- 68. Features of transformation processes in the economy of Ukraine.
- 69. Ukraine in the system of international scientific and technical relations: problems and prospects.
- 70. Directions of diversification of economic relations of Ukraine with the EU.
- 71. Benefits and risks of Ukraine's cooperation with international financial organizations.
- 72. Prerequisites and factors of international specialization of Ukraine.
- 73. European integration strategy of Ukraine and means of its implementation.

- 74. Scientific and technological potential of Ukraine and its implementation in the world economy.
- 75. Directions and forms of integration of Ukraine into the international exchange of labor.
- 76. Prerequisites, types and functions of international economic organizations.
- 77. OECD: goals, functions and impact on the world economy.
- 78. The role of the IMF in the world economy.
- 79. EBRD: purpose of creation and modern directions of activity.

11. TOOLS, EQUIPMENT AND SOFTWARE, THE USE OF WHICH PROVIDES FOR THE DISCIPLINE "WORLD ECONOMY"

Laptops to visualize lecture materials and materials prepared for presentation in a practical (seminar) class in the form of presentations using a multimedia projector and Power Point are used in the process of teaching and studying the discipline "World Economy".

12. RECOMMENDED REFERENCES

Main sources (In Ukrainian)

- 1. Багрова І.В. Міжнародна економічна діяльність України: Навчальний посібник / За заг. ред. І.В. Багрової. Київ: "Центр навчальної літератури", 2004. 384 с.
- 2. Бебик В. М. Сучасна глобалістика: провідні концепції і модерна практика: монографія / В. М. Бебик, С. О. Шергін, Л. О. Дегтерьова.— К.: Університет «Україна», 2006.—208 с.
- 3. Білорус О.Г. Глобалізація і безпека розвитку / О.Г. Білорус, Д.Г. Лук'яненко та ін.— К.: КНЕУ, 2005.-315 с.
- 4. Глобализация мирового хозяйства / Под ред. д-ра экон. наук, проф. М.Н. Осьмовой / Учеб. пособие.: ИНФРА-М, 2006. 410 с.
- 5. Глобальні тенденції і перспективи: світова економіка та Україна / Наук. ред. В.Юрчишин. Київ: Заповіт, 2018. 202 с.
- 6. Дахно І. І. Міжнародна економіка. Навч. посіб. / І.І. Дахно. МАУП, 2008.- 340 с.
- 7. Економіка зарубіжних країн. Навч. посіб. / За ред. Козака Ю.Г., Ковалевського В. В., Ржепішевського К. І.— К.: ЦУЛ, 2003. 352 с.
- 8. Економіка зарубіжних країн: Навч. посібник/ За ред. Козака Ю.Г., Ковалевського В.В., Осипова В.М. К.: ЦУЛ, 2007. 543 с.

- 9. Карпенко С. В.. Міжнародна економіка: навч. посіб. для дистанційного навчання / С. В. Карпенко, О. А. Карпенко; за наук. ред. д-ра. екон. н., проф. Ю. М. Краснова.— К.: Університет «Україна», 2007.— 230 с.
- 10. Козак Ю. Г. Міжнародна економіка: в питаннях та відповідях [текст] підруч./ Ю. Г. Козак. К.: Центр учбової літератури, 2017. 228 с.
- 11. Кузовков Ю.В. Глобализация и спираль истории / Ю.В. Кузовков .- Анима-Пресс, 2010.-258 с.
- 12. Куцик П. О. Глобальна економіка: принципи становлення, функціонуванн, регулювання та розвитку / П. О. Куцик, О. І. Ковтун, Г. І. Башнянин. Львів: Видавництво Львівської комерційної академії, 2015. 594 с.
- 13. Ламакін В.К. Світова економіка: Підручник для вузів/ В.К.Ламакін. М.: Фінанси, ЮНІТІ, 1999. 724 с.
- 14. Мировая экономика / Под ред. И.П. Николаевой, 2-е изд., перераб. и доп.-М.: ЮНИТИ, $2000.-288~\mathrm{c}.$
- 15. Михайлишин Л. І. Транснаціоналізація світової економіки: інноваційний аспект / Л. І. Михайлишин. Вінниця: ДонНУ, 2016. 313 с.
- 16. Міжнародна економіка: Підручник / За ред. А.П. Румянцева. К.: Знання-Пресс, 2003. 447 с.
- 17. Міжнародна економіка. Навч. посібник / За ред. Козака Ю. Г., Ковалевського В. В., Ржепішевського К. І. К.: ЦУЛ, 2004. 672 с.
- 18. Міжнародна економіка [текст] : навч. посіб. / За ред. Г. Е. Гронтковської / Г. Е. Гронтковська, О. І. Ряба, А. М. Венцурик, О. І. Красновська. К.: «Центр учбової літератури», 2014. 384 с.
- 19. Рогач О.І. Країни, що розвиваються, і транснаціоналізація світової економіки: Навч. посібник / О.І. Рогач, О.І. Шнирков. Київський ун-т ім. Тараса Шевченка. К.: РВЦ "Київський ун-т", 1998. 140 с.
- 20. Рогач О. Міжнародні інвестиції: Теорія та практика бізнесу транснаціональних корпорацій: Підручник / О.Рогач. К.: Либідь, 2005. 720 с.
- 21. Рогач О.І. Транснаціоналізація світового господарства та перехідні економіки: [Навч. посібник] / О.І.Рогач, О.І. Шнирков.- Київський ун-т ім. Тараса Шевченка. К.: Вид. центр "Київський ун-т", 1999. 302 с.
- 22. Румянцев А.П. Міжнародна економіка / А.П. Румянцев. К.: ЦУЛ. 2007.- 606 с.
- 23. Світова економіка. Економіка закордонних країн: Підручник / Під ред. В.П. Колесова, М.Н. Осьмовой. М.: Флінта: МПЦИ, 2000. 179 с.
- 24. Світова економіка: Підручник/ А.С.Філіпенко, В.С.Будкін, О.О.Веклич, С. Д. Годун.- 2-ге вид., стер.- К.: Либідь, 2002.- 582 с.
- 25. Світова економіка: Підручник / С.В. Головко (голов. ред.). 2. вид. К.: Либідь, 2001. 250 с.
- 26. Світова економіка : підручник / за ред. А. П. Голікова, О. А. Довгаль. X. : XHУ імені В. Н. Каразіна, 2015. 268 с.

- 27. Світова економіка у 2019 році знаходиться під прицілом маси загроз The Economist [Електронний ресурс] Режим доступу: https://zn.ua/ukr/WORLD/svitova-ekonomika-u-2019-roci-znahoditsya-pid-pricilom-masi-zagroz-the-economist-304032_.html.
- 28. Старостіна А. О. Економіка зарубіжних країн / А. О. Старостіна, А. О. Длігач, Н. В. Богомаз. К. : Знання, 2009. 454 с.
- 29. Філіпенко А.С. Україна і світове господарство: взаємодія на межі тисячоліть: Навч. посібник для студ. вищих навч. закладів / А.С. Філіпенко, В.С. Будкін, А.С.Гальчинський, В.М. Геєць, М.А. Дудченко. К.: Либідь, 2002. 470 с.
- 30. Філіпенко А.С. Економічний розвиток сучасної цивілізації: Навч. посіб. / А.С. Філіпенко. К.: "Знання", 2000. 174 с.
- 31. Філіпенко А.С. Світова економіка: Підручник для студ. вищих навч. закл., що навч. за спец. "Міжнародна економіка" / А.С. Філіпенко, О.І. Рогач, О.І. Шнирков, В.С. Будкін, О.О. Веклич. К.: Либідь, 2000. 582 с.
- 32. Філіпенко А.С. Світова економіка: Підручник/ А.С. Філіпенко, О.І. Рогач, О.І. Шнирков. К.: Либідь. 2002. 582 с.
- 33. Черевань В.П. Міжнародна економічна діяльність: Навчальний посібник / В.П. Черевань, А.П. Румянцева, Л.Ф. Романенко.— Київ: Видавничий дім "Слово", 2003. 280 с.
- 34. Чужиков В.І. Економіка зарубіжних країн: Навч. посіб./ В.І. Чужиков. КНЕУ. -2005.-308 с.

Main sources (in English)

- 1. Bloomberg New Energy Finance. New Energy Outlook 2019. Available at https://about.bnef.com/new-energy-outlook/#toc-download.
- 2. Bourguignon F. The Globalization of Inequality / François Bourguignon. Princeton: Princeton University Press, 2015.
- 3. Rozenberg J., Fay M. (2019). Beyond the Gap: How Countries Can Afford the Infrastructure They Need While Protecting the Planet.- 2019.- World Bank Sustainable Infrastructure Series (February). Washington,D.C.: World Bank. Available at https://elibrary.worldbank.org/doi/abs/10.1596/978-1-4648-1363-4.
- 4. Stern D. I., Burke P. J., Bruns St. B. The impact of electricity on economic development: a macroeconomic perspective. 2019. University of California Berkeley, Center for Effective Global Action. Available at https://escholarship.org/uc/item/7jb0015q.
- 5. United Nations Development Programme [UNDP]. Human Development Report 2019—Beyond Income, Beyond Averages, Beyond Today: Inequalities in Human Development in the 21st Century. Sales No. E.20.III.B.1. Available at http://hdr.undp.org/sites/default/files/hdr2019.pdf.

- 6. United Nations Economic Commission for Africa [ECA]. Economic Report on Africa 2019: Fiscal Policy for Financing Sustainable Development in Africa. Sales No. E.19.II.K.2. Available at https://www.uneca.org/publications/economic-report-africa-2019.
- 7. United Nations Economic Commission for Latin America and the Caribbean and International Labour Organization [ECLAC and ILO]. Employment Situation in Latin America and the Caribbean—The Future of Work in Latin America and the Caribbean: Old and New Forms of Employment and Challenges for Labour Regulation. No. 20 (May). LC/TS.2019/31.- 2019. Available at https://repositorio.cepal.org/bitstream/handle/11362/44605/1/S1900308_en.pdf.
- 8. United Nations Economic and Social Commission for Asia and the Pacific [ESCAP]. The Economics of Climate Change in the Asia-Pacific Region. ST/ ESCAP/2761. Bangkok. 2016. Available at https://www.unescap.org/sites/default/
- ESCAP/2761. Bangkok. 2016. Available at https://www.unescap.org/sites/default/files/The%20Economics%20of%20Climate%20Change%20%20in%20the%20Asia-Pacific%20region.pdf.
- 9. World Economic Situation 2020. Prospects / United Nations. New York. 2020.

Additional sources (In Ukrainian)

- 1. Артамонова Г. Зовнішня торгівля України з ЄС: можливості та виклики. Журнал європейської економіки / Г.Артамонова // Видання Тернопільського національного економічного університету. 2019. Т. 18. № 3(70). с. 283–295.
- 2. Білорус О.Г. Транзитивні країни у світосистемі постіндустріального глобалізму / О.Г. Білорус // Економічний часопис XXI століття. 2013.- №9-10(1).
- 3. Глобальні тенденції і перспективи: світова економіка та Україна. /Наук. ред. В.Юрчишин. Київ: Заповіт, 2018. 202 с.
- 4. Карпенко В.Г. Фінансові механізми транснаціональних корпорацій у системі сучасної світової економіки / В.Г. Карпенко// Наукові праці НДФІ. -2009. -№ 1.- с. 42-105.
- 5. Кузьмін О.Є., Горбаль Н.І. Управління міжнародною конкурентоспроможністю підприємства: Підручник. / О.Є. Кузьмін, Н.І. Горбаль. Львів: "Компакт-ЛВ", 2005. 304 с.
- 6. Лук'яненко Д.Г. Економічна інтеграція і глобальні проблеми сучасності: Навч. посібник. / Д.Г. Лук'яненко— К.: КНЕУ, 2005. 203 с.
- 7. Македон В.В. Формат взаємодії транснаціональних корпорацій та реального сектору національної економіки України / В.В. Македон // Бюлетень Міжнародного Нобелівського економічного форуму. 2012. № 1. С. 250–258.
- 8. Максименко А.В. Тенденції та стратегічні мотиви злиття і поглинання міжнародних корпорацій / А.В.Максименко // Економічний часопис XXI століття. 2013. №9-10 (1).
- 9. Міжнародна економіка: Навч. посібник/ За ред. Козака Ю.Г., Логвінової Н.С., Осипова В.М. К.: ЦУЛ, 2008. 580 с.

- 10. Міжнародна економіка: підруч. для студ. вищ. навч. закл. / За ред. Ю. Г. Козака, Д. Г. Лук'яненка, Ю. В. Макогона [3-тє вид.] К.: Центр учбової літератури, 2009. 560 с.
- 11. Міжнародні економічні відносини. Навч. посібник. Одеса- «ТОВ.ПЛУТОН», 2016. 352 с.
- 12. Новицький В.Є. Міжнародна економічна діяльність України: Підручник. / В.Є. Новицький. К.: КНЕУ, 2003. 948 с.
- 13. Сіваченко І.Ю. Управління міжнародною конкурентоспроможністю підприємств: Навч. Посібник/ За ред. І.Ю. Сіваченка, Ю.Г. Козака, Ю.І. Єханурова. К.: Центр навчальної літератури, 2006. 456 с.
- 14. Солонінко К. С. Міжнародна економіка. / К.С. Солонінко. Кондор. 2008. 380 с.

Additional sources (in English)

- 1. Altshuler Cl. The World Economic Forecasting Model at the United Nations. New York: United Nations, Department of Economic and Social Affairs. 2016. Available from https://www.un.org/development/ desa/dpad/wp-content/uploads/sites/45/publication/2016_Apr_
- WorldEconomicForecastingModel.pdf.
- 2. Ball L. M. Long-term damage from the Great Recession in OECD countries. European Journal of Economics and Economic Policies: Intervention. 2014. vol. 11, No. 2 (September), pp. 149-160.
- 3. Canada (2018). Final report by the Task Force on Just Transition for Canadian Coal Power Workers and Communities. December. Available at https://www.canada.ca/en/environment-climate-change/services/climate-change/taskforce-just-transition/final-report.html.
- 4. Convergence and Divergence in Europe: Polish and Ukrainian Cases: моnograph / scientific editors Dmytro Lukianenko, Viktor Chuzhykov, Machal Gabriel Woznaniak. Kiev: KNEU, 2013. 687 р.
- 5. Damgaard J., Elkjaer Th., Johannesen N. The rise of phantom investments. Finance and Development, 2019. vol. 56, No. 3 (September). Available at https://www.imf.org/external/pubs/ft/fandd/2019/09/the-rise-of-phantom-FDI-in-tax-havens-damgaard.htm.
- 6. Hafstead M., Picciano P. Calculating various fuel prices under a carbon tax. Resources for the Future blog, 2017. 28 November. Available at http://www.resourcesmag.org/common-resources/calculating-various-fuel-pricesunder-acarbon-tax/.
- 7. Handley K., Limao N. Policy uncertainty, trade, and welfare: theory and evidence for China and the United States. American Economic Review, 2017. vol. 107, No. 9, pp. 2731-2783 (September). Available at https://www.aeaweb.org/articles?id=10.1257/aer.20141419.

- 8. Organization for Economic Cooperation and Development (OECD). How's Life? 2017: Measuring Well-Being. Paris: OECD Publishing.
- 9. Rosemberg A. Expert perspectives: embedding Just Transition in longterm decarbonization strategies. why, what and how. Washington, D.C.: World Resources Institute. 2018. Available at https://www.wri.org/climate/expertperspective/ embedding-just-transition-long-term-decarbonizationstrategies-why-what.
- 10. World Bank. 2020. Global Economic Prospects, June 2020. Washington, DC: World Bank. 2020. Available at https://openknowledge.worldbank.org/handle/10986/33748

Official sites to study a discipline "World Economy"

- 1. https://eu-ua.org Євроінтеграційний портал «Україна-Європа» / "Ukraine-Europe" European Integration Portal.
- 2. http://www.ukrstat.gov.ua Офіційний сайт Державної служби статистики України / official site of the State Statistics Service of Ukraine.
- 3. https://eeas.europa.eu/ Офіційний сайт Європейської служби зовнішніх зв'язків / the official website of the European External Action Service.
- 4. http://www.forbes.com Офіційний сайт журналу Forbes / official site of Forbes magazine.
- 5. <u>www.unctad.org</u> Офіційний сайт Конференції ООН з торгівлі та розвитку (ЮНКТАД) / official website of the United Nations Conference on Trade and Development (UNCTAD).
- 6. http://me.gov.ua Офіційний сайт Міністерства розвитку економіки, торгівлі та сільського господарства України / Official site of the Ministry of Economic Development, Trade and Agriculture of Ukraine
- 7. https://ec.europa.eu Офіційний сайт статистичної служби Європейського Союзу / official site of the statistical service of the European Union.

Підписано до друку 28 жовтня 2020 р. Формат 60х90/16. Папір офсетний. Ум. друк. арк.2,14. Наклад 100. Зам. 3348.

Віддруковано в ТОВ "Поліграфцентр "Ліра": 88000, м. Ужгород, вул. Митрака, 25

Свідоцтво про внесення до Державного реєстру видавців, виготівників і розповсюджувачів видавничої продукції Серія ЗТ №24 від 7 листопада 2005 року.